
Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board 

March 8, 2016 

John Phillips, Fleet & Facilities Director CERTIFIED MAIL 7009 0820 0001 6630 3959 
Travel Systems, LLC 
Aramark Sports and Entertainment Services, LCC 
P.O. Box 12309 
Zephry Cove, Nevada 89448 
Phillips-john@aramark.com 

The Corporation Trust Company of Nevada CERTIFIED MAIL 7009 0820 0001 6630 3966 
Registered Agent 
701 South Carson Street, Suite 200 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

WITHDRAWAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY COMPLAINT NO. R6T-2016-0006 
AND ISSUANCE OF REVISED ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY COMPLAINT NO. 
R6T-2016-0008 FOR ARAMARK- ELDORADO COUNTY, WDID NO. 6A091503011 

I am withdrawing Administrative Civil Liability Complaint No. R6T-2016-0006, issued to 
Travel Systems, LLC, and Aramark Sports and Entertainment Services, LCC (collectively 
referred to as "Aramark" or "Discharger') on February 19, 2016. I am issuing a revised 
complaint which includes a revised civil liability methodology detennination. The revised 
methodology adjusts the economic benefit, adjusting the recommended civil liability from 
$4,983.00 to $4,683.00. 

Enclosed please find Administrative Civil Liability Complaint No. R6T-2016-0008 
(Complaint) issued pursuant to California Water code section 13385, alleging violations by 
the Discharger of the Water Quality Control Plan for the Lahontan Region. The violations 
are the result of the unauthorized discharge of four gallons of hydraulic oil into Lake Tahoe 
on March 5, 2015. The Complaint proposes that the Regional Water Quality Control Board, 
Lahontan Region (Lahontan Water Board) assess an administrative civil liability against 
the Discharger in the amount of $4,683.00 pursuant to California Water Code section 
13385. Also enclosed is a Waiver of Hearing fonn for this matter. 

Both Aramark and the Prosecution T earn have agreed to continue following the Hearing 
Procedures that the Advisory Team issued on February 19, 2016, for Administrative Civil 
Liability Complaint No. R6T-2016-0006. Those procedures establish various deadlines for 
conducting a hearing at the May 11-12, 2016, Board meeting. 

Unless waived, a hearing before the Lahontan Water Board or a Lahontan Water Board 
Hearing Panel (Hearing Panel} will be held on this Complaint pursuant to Water Code 
section 13323. At the hearing, the Lahontan Water Board will consider whether to impose 
administrative civil liability (as proposed in the Complaint or for a different amount}, decline 
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the administrative civil liability, or refer the matter to the Attorney General for judicial 
enforcement. Public hearing procedures for this matter are also enclosed. The public 
hearing procedures identify the type of information that must be submitted in preparation 
for the public hearing, identify the hearing participants, and explain how the public hearing 
will proceed. 

The Discharger may contest the proposed administrative civil liability at the hearing or, in 
the alternative, may waive its right to the hearing. Should the Discharger choose to waive 
its right to a hearing, an authorized agent must sign the enclosed Waiver of Hearing form 
and return it to the Lahontan Water Board's South Lake Tahoe office by 5:00 p.m. on 
Apri14, 2016. If the Lahontan Water Board does not receive the waiver and full payment of 
the liability by this date and time, the matter will be heard before the Lahontan Water 
Board or a Hearing Panel within 90 days of the Complaint's issuance date. An agenda 
containing the date, time, and location of the hearing will be mailed to the Dischargers at 
least 1 0 days prior to the hearing date 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Eric J. Taxer, Water 
Resources Control Engineer, at (530) 542-5434 (Eric.Taxer@waterboards.ca.gov) or 
Cathe Pool, Senior Water Resources Control Engineer, at (530) 542-5460 
(Catherine.Pool@waterboards.ca.gov). 

&-~~~ 
Assistant Executive Officer 

Enclosures: 1. Administrative Civil Liability Complaint No. R6T-2016-0008 
2. Waiver of Hearing Form 
3. Hearing Procedures 
4. Public Participation Information Sheet 

cc (with enclosure): 

Regional Board Members 
Patty Z. Kouyoumdjian, Executive Officer, Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Kim Niemeyer, Staff Counsel, State Water Resources Control Board, Office of Chief Counsel 
John Prager, Staff Counsel, State Water Resources Control Board, Office of Enforcement 
Laura Drabandt, State Water Resources Control Board, Office of Enforcement 
Catherine Pool, Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Eric Taxer, Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board 

· Steve Sweet, Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
Ken Kasman, Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
Bob Hosea, California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Karen Bender, El Dorado County Department of Environmental Health 
Krista Costantini, El Dorado County Department of Environmental Health 
Jason Burke, Stormwater Program Coordinator, City of South Lake Tahoe 
Dan Jack, Ski Run Marina 
Elie Alyeshmemi 

EJT/marr: Tahoe Queen, RE-ISSUED ACL Complaint Cover Letter, 2016-03-03 EJT 
File Under: 6A091503011 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD 

LAHONTAN REGION 

In the Matter of: ) 
) 

ARAMARK SPORTS AND ) 
ENTERTAINMENT SERVICES, LLC, and ) 
TRAVEL SYSTEMS, LLC ) 
WDID No. 6A091503011 ) 

COMPLAINT NO. R6T-2016-0008 
FOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY 

ARAMARK SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT SERVICES, LLC, AND TRAVEL 
SYSTEMS, LCC ARE HEREBY GIVEN NOTICE THAT: 

1. As a result of a hydraulic oil spill into Lake Tahoe from the Tahoe Queen vessel, 
which occurred on March 5, 2015, Aramark Sports and Entertainment Services, 
LLC and Travel Systems, LLC (collectively referred to as "Aramark", or 
Discharger") are herein alleged to have violated provisions of California Water 
Code section 13385, subdivision (a), for which the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, Lahontan Region (Lahontan Water Board} may impose 
administrative civil liabilities pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision 
(c). This Administrative Civil Liability Complaint (Complaint) is issued under 
authority of Water Code section 13323. 

2. Unless waived, a hearing on this Complaint will be held before the Lahontan Water 
Board on May 11-12, 2016, at 971 Silver Dollar Avenue, South Lake Tahoe, 
California. At the hearing, the Lahontan Water Board will consider whether to 
affirm, reject, or modify the proposed civil liability, or refer the matter to the 
Attorney General's Office for recovery of judicial liability. The Discharger or its 
representative will have an opportunity to be heard and to contest the allegations in 
this Complaint and the imposition of civil liability. An agenda for the meeting will be 
available at http;//www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/board info/agenda.shtml not 
less than 1 0 days before the hearing date. 

3. The Discharger can waive its right to a hearing to contest the allegations contained 
in this Complaint by submitting a signed waiver and paying the civil liability in full or 
by taking other actions as described in the attached waiver form. If this matter 
proceeds to hearing, the Lahontan Water Board's Prosecution Team reser-Ves the 
right to seek an increase in the civil liability amount to cover the costs of 
enforcemenl'incurred subsequent to the issuance of this Complaint through hearing. 

FACTUAL BASIS FOR THE ALLEGED VIOLATIONS 

4. The Discharger owns and operates the Tahoe Queen vessel, located at Ski Run 
Marina in South Lake Tahoe, California. A location map is provided in Attachment 
A to this document. 
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5. On March 5, 2015, Lahontan Water Board staff received a complaint of an oily 
substance within the waters of Lake Tahoe along the west side of Ski Run Marina. 
The complainant's dog was in the water, and upon returning home, the 
complainant discovered an oily substance was coating the dog. When the 
complainant returned to the marina to identify a potential source of the oily 
substance, she observed an oily and greasy-to-the-touch sheen on the water 
where the dog had been. The complainant reported her observations to the 
California Department of Emergency Services (Cal OES) at 9:11 p.m. that evening, 
and Cal OES subsequently forwarded the report to the Lahontan Water Board in 
addition to other agencies [see Attachment 5 to the Administrative Civil Liability 
Methodology Document, attached to this Complaint]. 

6. The following day on March 6, 2015, at 10:30 a.m., City of South Lake Tahoe 
stormwater program staff inspected the City's outfall pipes within the Ski Run 
Marina area in response to the report filed with Cal OES. City staff did not observe 
any signs that an oily substance had been discharged from their storm water 
collection and conveyance system. They did observe an oily sheen on the water 
within the Ski Run Marina and outside the marina along the shoreline near the 
Tahoe Queen vessel. Between 10:30 and 10:40 a.m., City staff observed the 
Discharger's staff deploying absorbent material on board the Tahoe Queen vessel 
and in the lake area around the vessel. Photographs provided by City staff 
indicate that the oil sheen was located on the shoreline to the west of the marina, 
consistent with the oil sheen reported by the complainant to Cal OES on 
March 5, 2015 [see Attachment 6 to the Administrative Civil Liability Methodology 
Document, attached to this Complaint]. 

7. At 11 :49 a.m. on March 6, 2015, Mr. Joao Rodriguez {Discharger's Marina Manager) 
notified the Cal OES that a hydraulic hose leaked oil onto the Tahoe Queen vessel 
and into the waters of Lake Tahoe at Ski Run Marina. Mr. Rodriguez stated that the 
cause of the leak was unknown at the time, but that a boom and absorbent pads were 
placed around the Tahoe Queen vessel to contain and clean up the discharge. 

At 12:01 p.m., Mr. John Phillips, the Discharger's Fleet and Facilities Director, provided 
an update to Cal OES stating that the total volume released was approximately 1 0 
gallons, of which approximately 5 gallons had been discharged into Lake Tahoe {these 
estimates were later revised to 9 gallons released, of which 4 gallons had been 
discharged into Lake Tahoe). Mr. Phillips stated that cleanup was In progress. Mr. 
Phillips reported the time of the discharge to have occurred at 9:30am on 
March 6, 2015. 

8. El Dorado County Department of Environmental Health inspected the site the 
morning of March 6, 2015. Mr. Curtis Kiesel from the El Dorado County 
Department of Environmental Health provided an additional update to Cal OES at 
12:30 pm, stating that the Discharger was placing a boom around the sheen, and 
that the California Department of Fish and Wildlife were collecting water samples. 
Mr. Kiesel added that the extent of the sheen was unknown at the time, but that the 
sheen appeared to have blown towards the marina. 
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9. The Discharger submitted a spill report to the Lahontan Water Board on March 16, 2015, 
and provided supplemental information to the spill report March 24, 2015. The 
following facts were provided in the spill report. 

a. Maintenance activities on the Tahoe Queen vessel's paddlewheel had been 
occurring prior to the discharge event. A contractor for the Discharger, Advanced 
Marine, was conducting the maintenance. The contractor disconnected the 
hydraulic lines, but the lines were not adequately capped per industry standard 
(i.e., steel caps). The contractor capped the lines using only plastic and duct 
tape to prevent dust and water from entering the lines. The contractor did not 
create a pressurized seal to prevent oil from spilling from the lines because the 
contractor believed the engine was static and would not be started. 

b. On March 5, 2015, at approximately 4:30p.m., the Discharger's staff 
(associated with another vessel, the Paradise) conducted a routine weekly 
inspection of the Tahoe Queen vessel. The routine inspection typically includes 
engine startup to prevent carbon buildup. The Discharger's staff involved with 
the weekly inspection did not know that the hydraulic lines were still undergoing 
repair at the time of the weekly inspection. 

c. As a result of engine startup during the weekly inspection, approximately nine 
gallons of hydraulic oil was spilled onto the rear deck of the Tahoe Queen 
vessel. Over five gallons of the spilled oil were recovered, and four gallons 
were released into Lake Tahoe. 

d. The hydraulic oil used is a highly refined mineral oil, as noted on the material 
safety data sheet submitted March 16, 2015. 

e. The spill was not observed by the Discharger's staff until 9:45 a.m. the following 
morning, March 6, 2015. The spill was discovered by Joao Rodriguez after 
being notified by Ski Run Marina staff of an oily sheen on the waters in and 
around the marina. Mr. Rodriguez determined the source of the discharge to 
be from maintenance activities on the Tahoe Queen. 

f. The Discharger deployed spill containment booms and reported the spill upon 
observation of the discharge on March 6, 2015. The material was substantially 
cleaned up by March 7, and the results of water samples collected on March 10, 
2015, verified no detectable concentrations of oil remained in the marina area. 

g. The Tahoe Queen repairs were completed on March 12, 2015. 

h. Aramark employees who perform servicing or maintenance on equipment are 
required by company policy to have Jock-out/tag-out training. The Discharger's 
March 24, 2015 report indicates that this training may not have been provided 
to its employees working on the Tahoe Queen. The report did not indicate that 
its contractor had lock-out/tag-out training, nor did it indicate that such protocols 
were implemented. 
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10. The California Department of Fish and Wildlife collected two water samples on March 
6, 2015. The sample locations were at the west end of Ski Run Marina and within the 
middle of Ski Run Marina. The analyses were completed on March 30, 2015, and 
confirmed the presence of petroleum hydrocarbons (sample analysis conducted 
only for confirmation, not for concentration values). 

11. The Lahontan Water Board issued a Notice of Violation and Investigative Order 
No. R6T-2015-0029 to the Discharger on June 19, 2015. The Order required the 
Discharger to submit information regarding the cost to properly seal the hydraulic 
lines, a standard operating procedure specific to boat maintenance activities at Ski 
Run Marina, the cost for developing the standard operating procedure document, 
documentation that all of the Discharger's employees and contractors performing 
operation and maintenance activities on the Tahoe Queen have received lock­
out/tag-out training and/or refresher training, and any additional information to 
assist the evaluation of the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the 
violations. The Discharger complied with the Order on August 28, 2015. The 
information provided was used to assess the proposed civil liability (see 
Attachment B, Administrative Civil Liability Methodology). 

APPLICABLE PROHIBITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS 

12. Section 301 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (Clean Water Act) (33 
U.S.C. § 1311) and Water Code section 13376 prohibit the discharge of pollutants 
to waters of the United States except in compliance with a National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. 

13. The Lahontan Water Board adopted the Water Quality Control Plan for the 
Lahontan Region (Basin Plan) pursuant to Water Code Section 13243. The Basin 
Plan contains the following prohibitions: 

"Waters shall not contain oils, greases, waxes or other materials in 
concentrations that result in a visible film or coating on the surface 
of the water or on objects in the water, that cause nuisance, or that 
otherwise adversely affect the water for beneficial uses." [Basin 
Plan, Chapter,5.1] 

"The discharge of treated or untreated domestic sewage, garbage 
or other solid wastes, or any other deleterious material to the 
surface waters of the Lake Tahoe Basin is prohibited." [Basin Plan, 
Chapter 5.2} 

"The discharge, attributable to human activities, of solid or liquid 
waste materials, including soil, silt, clay, sand, and other organic 
and earthen materials, to the surface waters of the Lake Tahoe 
Basin, is prohibited." [Basin Plan, Chapter 5.2] 
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"The discharge of wastes from boats, marinas, or other shoreline 
appurtenances to surface waters of the Lake Tahoe HU is 
prohibited." [Basin Plan, Chapter 5.2] 

"The discharge of any waste or deleterious material to surface 
waters of the Lake Tahoe HU is prohibited." [Basin Plan, Chapter 
5.2] 

"The discharge of waste which causes violation of any narrative 
water quality objective contained in this Plan, including the 
Nondegradation Objective, is prohibited." [Basin Plan, Chapters 3 
and 5.2] 

ALLEGED VIOLATIONS 

14. The Discharger violated Water Code section 13376 and Clean Water Act section 
301 by discharging approximately four gallons of pollutants (hydraulic oil) to waters 
of the United States (Lake Tahoe) on March 5, 2015, without filing a report of 
waste discharge or obtaining an NPDES permit. These violations subject the 
Discharger to liability pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivisions (a)(1) 
and (a)(5). 

15. The Discharger violated prohibitions in the Basin Plan by discharging 
approximately four gallons of hydraulic oil from the Tahoe Queen vessel into Lake 
Tahoe on March 5, 2010, adversely affecting beneficial uses of Lake Tahoe. 
These violations subject the Discharger to liability pursuant to Water Code section 
13385, subdivision (a)(4). 

16. The Discharger caused oil or any residuary product of petroleum to be deposited in 
or on a water of the state when it released four gallons of hydraulic oil into Lake 
Tahoe on March 5, 2015. This subjects the Discharger to liability pursuant to Water 
Code section 13350, subdivision (a). 

WATER CODE SECTIONS UPON WHICH ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY IS 
BEING ASSESSED FOR THE ALLEGED VIOLATIONS 

17.Pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (a)(1), a discharger is subject to 
civil liability for violating Water Code section 13376. Pursuant to Water Code section 
13385, subdivision (a)(4), a discharger is subject to civil liability for violating an order 
or prohibition issued pursuant to Water Code section 13243 (e.g., the Basin Plan), if 
the activity subject to the order or prohibition is subject to regulation under Chapter 
5.5 of Division 7 of the California Water Code (e.g., involves discharge of pollutants 
to waters of the United States regulated under the Clean Water Act). Pursuant to 
Water Code section 13385, subdivision (a)(5), a discharger is subject to civil liability 
for violating Section 301 of the Clean Water Act. 
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18. Pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (c), civil liability may be imposed 
administratively by the Lahontan Water Board in an amount not to exceed the sum 
of both of the following: 

(1) Ten thousand dollars ($1 0,000} for each day in which the violation occurs; and 

(2) Where there is a discharge, any portion of which is not susceptible to cleanup or 
is not cleaned up, and the volume discharged but not cleaned up exceeds 1,000 
gallons, an additional liability not to exceed ten dollars ($1 0) multiplied by the 
number of gallons by which the volume discharged but not cleaned up exceeds 
1,000 gallons. 

19. Pursuant to Water Code section 13350, subdivision (a), a discharger is subject to 
civil liability for violation of a waste discharge requirement or other order or 
prohibition issued by the State Water Board (e.g., Order No. 2006-0003-DWQ). 

20. Pursuant to Water Code section 13350, subdivision (e), civil liability may be imposed 
administratively by the Lahontan Water Board in an amount not to exceed five 
thousand dollars ($5,000) for each day in which the violation occurs, or an amount 
not to exceed ten dollars ($10) per gallon discharged, but not both. 

21. For the violations cited above, administrative civil liability may be assessed either 
under Water Code section 13350 or Water Code section 13385, but not both 
(see § 13385, subd. (g)). Since the discharge was to waters of the United States, it 
is appropriate to proceed under Water Code section 13385 here, and to hold the 
Water Code section 13350 violations in the alternative. 

FACTORS CONSIDERED IN DETERMINING ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL UABILITY 

22. Pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (e), in determining the amount of 
any civil liability, the Water Board is required to take into account the nature, 
circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violations, whether the discharges are 
susceptible to cleanup or abatement, the degree of toxicity of the discharges, and, 
with respect to the violator, the ability to pay, the effect on its ability to continue its · 
business, any voluntary cleanup efforts undertaken, any prior history of violations, 
the degree of culpability, economic benefit or savings, if any, resulting from the 
violations, and other matters that justice may require. 

23. On November 17, 2009, the State Water Board adopted Resolution 2009-0083 
amending the Water Quality Enforcement Policy (Enforcement Policy). The 
Enforcement Policy was approved by the Office of Administrative Law and became 
effective on May 20, 2010. The Enforcement Policy establishes a methodology for 
assessing administrative civil liability. The use of this methodology addresses the 
factors that are required to be considered when imposing a civil liability as outlined in 
Water Code section 13385, subdivision (e). The entire Enforcement Policy can be 
found at: 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/enforcemenVdocs/enf po 
licy final111709.pdf 
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24. The required factors have been considered for the violations alleged herein using 
the methodology in the Enforcement Policy, as explained in detail in Attachment B. 

MAXIMUM ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY. 

25. Pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (c), the total maximum 
administrative civil liability that may be imposed for the violations alleged in this 
Complaint is $10,000, as described in Attachments Band C. 

PROPOSED ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY AMOUNT 

26. Based on consideration of the above facts, the applicable law, and after applying the 
administrative civil liability methodology as described in Attachments B and C, the 
Assistant Executive Officer of the Water Board proposes that civil liability be 
imposed administratively on the Discharger in the amount of $4,683.00. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

Date 

Attachments: 

A. Location Map 
B. Administrative Civil Liability Methodology 
C. Enforcement Policy Methodology Spreadsheet 





ATTACHMENT A 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank. 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



ATTACHMENT B 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 
ATTACHMENT B 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL LIABILITY METHODOLOGY 

 
Administrative civil liability may be imposed pursuant to the procedures described in 
California Water Code section 13323. The Complaint alleges the act or failure to act that 
constitutes a violation of law, the provision of law authorizing civil liability to be imposed, 
and the proposed civil liability. 
 
Pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (c), civil liability may be imposed 
administratively by the Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board (Lahontan 
Water Board) in an amount not to exceed the sum of both of the following: 
 
 (1) Ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for each day in which the violation occurs; and  
 
 (2) Where there is a discharge, any portion of which is not susceptible to cleanup or 

is not cleaned up, and the volume discharged but not cleaned up exceeds 1,000 
gallons, an additional liability not to exceed ten dollars ($10) multiplied by the 
number of gallons by which the volume discharged but not cleaned up exceeds 
1,000 gallons. 

 
Water Code section 13385, subdivision (e) requires the Lahontan Water Board to 
consider several factors when determining the amount of civil liability to impose.  These 
factors include:  
 

“…the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation or violations, 
whether the discharge is susceptible to cleanup or abatement, the degree of 
toxicity of the discharge, and, with respect to the violator, the ability to pay, 
the effect on its ability to continue its business, any voluntary cleanup efforts 
undertaken, any prior history of violations, the degree of culpability, economic 
benefit or savings, if any, resulting from the violation, and other matters that 
justice may require.  At a minimum, liability shall be assessed at a level that 
recovers the economic benefits, if any, derived from the acts that constitute 
the violation.” 

 
On November 17, 2009, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) 
adopted Resolution 2009-0083 amending the Water Quality Enforcement Policy 
(Enforcement Policy).  The Enforcement Policy provides a calculation methodology for 
determining administrative civil liability.  The calculation methodology includes an 
analysis of the factors in Water Code section 13385, subdivision (e), and it enables fair and 
consistent implementation of the Water Code’s liability provisions.  Attachment C and the 
following discussion presents the administrative civil liability derived from the 
Enforcement Policy’s administrative civil liability calculation methodology.  Attachment C 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.   
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The alleged violation by Aramark in the Complaint and this technical analysis is a 
discharge violation for the purpose of applying the Enforcement Policy’s penalty 
calculation methodology.  The violation resulted from an unauthorized discharge of four 
gallons of hydraulic oil into Lake Tahoe on March 5, 2015.  This analysis omits step 
three of the calculation methodology, which addresses non-discharge violations. 
 
Aramark submitted a spill investigation report, dated March 16, 2015 (Attachment 1), 
and supplemental information to the spill report dated March 24, 2015 (Attachment 2).    
Page 1 of the March 16, 2015 report states, “Based on the remaining volume of the oil 
in the tank, it is estimated that approximately nine gallons of the hydraulic oil was spilled 
onto the rear deck of the Tahoe Queen’s. [sic].  Over five gallons of the spilled oil were 
recovered before the remaining approximately four gallons were accidentally released 
into the lake.”  
 
Step 1: Potential for Harm for Discharge Violations 
 
Actual or threatened impacts to beneficial uses are determined using a three-factor 
scoring system. The three factors include: (a) the harm or potential harm to beneficial 
uses; (b) the physical, chemical, biological, or thermal characteristics of the discharge; 
and (c) the susceptibility to cleanup or abatement of the discharge(s).  A numeric score 
is determined for each of the three factors.  These scores are then added together to 
determine a final Potential for Harm score.  Based on the scores for environmental 
harm, receptor risk, and cleanup susceptibility, and as further detailed below, a score of 
6 (six) is assigned to Step 1 of the calculation methodology.   
 
A.  Factor 1: Harm or Potential Harm to Beneficial Uses 
 

This factor evaluates direct or indirect harm or potential for harm to beneficial uses 
that may result from exposure to the pollutants or contaminants in the illegal 
discharge.  A score between 0 (negligible) and 5 (major) is assigned in accordance 
with the statutory factors of the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the 
violation.   
 
Hydraulic oil discharges can pollute surface or ground waters, threaten public health, 
adversely affect aquatic life, and impair the recreational use and aesthetic enjoyment 
of surface waters.   
 
The Water Quality Control Plan for the Lahontan Region (Basin Plan) was adopted 
on March 31, 1995, and most recently amended on September 10, 2015.  Chapter 5 
of the Basin Plan establishes Water Quality Standards and Control Measures for the 
Lake Tahoe Basin.  Chapter 5 of the Basin Plan (Table 5.1-1, Page 5.1-16) lists the 
designated beneficial uses for Lake Tahoe.  The beneficial uses that were or that 
could be impacted by the unauthorized discharge of hydraulic oil include contact 
recreation (swimming, water skiing, wading, and fishing), non-contact recreation 
(picnicking, sunbathing, hiking, boating, kayaking, sightseeing, aesthetic enjoyment), 
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cold freshwater habitat, wildlife habitat, preservation of biological habitats of special 
significance, migration of aquatic organisms, and spawning (support of high quality 
aquatic habitat necessary for reproduction and early development of fish and 
wildlife).   
 
At a minimum, the discharge of hydraulic oil to Lake Tahoe created a more than 
moderate threat to contact and non-contact recreation beneficial uses.  The 
discharge occurred during a warm and sunny spring day 
(http://www.accuweather.com/en/us/south-lake-tahoe-ca/96150/march-
weather/337257), when it is reasonable to assume that recreational users would be 
on or in the water.  Indeed, the Lahontan Water Board was initially notified of the 
discharge via electronic mail from the California Office of Emergency Services’s 
Warning Center.  The March 5, 2015 electronic mail (time-stamped 9:23 p.m. and 
addressed to Scott Ferguson of the Lahontan Water Board staff, included in 
Attachment 5) describes impacts to contact recreation beneficial uses.  The 
electronic mail states, “Caller states she was at the beach and her dog was in the 
water and when she arrived at home she found that the dog had an oily substance 
on her.  Caller states she went back to the beach to see what the dog had gotten 
into caller states there was sheen and when she put her hand in the water it came 
out oily as in touch (Greasy). [sic]”   
 
Lahontan Water Board staff followed up with the complainant on March 6, 2015 
(5:34 p.m., March 6, 2015 electronic mail from Lisa Scoralle to Scott Ferguson, 
included in Attachment 5).  The complainant indicated to Lahontan Water Board staff 
that she and her dog had been to the Ski Run Marina beach the previous evening, 
and her dog had been swimming in Lake Tahoe at that location.  When they got 
home after dark, she touched the dog and noticed that her hands (and the dog’s fur) 
were oily to the touch.  She described the oily substance as having an industrial 
smell.  She washed the dog with a pet shampoo, but the substance did not come off.  
She then re-washed the dog with a dishwashing liquid, and that was successful in 
removing the oil and odor.  She was later contacted by Bryan Vyverberg with the El 
Dorado County Environmental Health who told her there had been a hydraulic fuel 
spill discovered at the Ski Run Marina and that he suspected the two incidents were 
related. 
 
The hydraulic oil could potentially create a localized affect on aquatic and habitat-
related beneficial uses.  The hydraulic oil that was discharged is a Chevron 
Company product called “Clarity Hydraulic Oil AW 46,” as noted in the material 
safety data sheet (MSDS) provided in Attachment G to Aramark’s August 28, 2015 
technical report (Attachment 3).  The MSDS describes potential impacts to human 
and environmental health, as well as measures to take in the event of exposure. 
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Regarding human ingestion, inhalation, and skin exposure impacts, page 2 of the 
MSDS states,  
 

“If more than several mouthfuls are swallowed, abdominal discomfort, 
nausea, and diarrhea may occur. 
 
“Breathing the vapour or mist may cause respiratory irritation, 
discomfort, or other pulmonary effects.   
 
“Expected to cause no more than minor skin irritation. 
 
“Prolonged or frequently repeated contact may cause more severe 
irritation or may cause the skin to become cracked or dry from the 
defatting action of this material.” 

 
Regarding the long-term toxic effects of the material, page 2 of the MSDS states, 
“The base oil component(s) are not expected to be carcinogenic based on the IARC 
criteria.  This product has not been tested as a whole for chronic health effects.”  
Pages 4-5 of the MSDS adds,  
 

“This product contains petroleum base oils which may be refined by 
various processes including severe solvent extraction, hydrocracking 
and hydrotreating.  These oils have not been listed in the U.S. National 
Toxicology Program (NTP) Annual Report nor have they been classified 
by the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) as 
carcinogenic to humans.” 

 
Page 5 of the MSDS addresses environmental effects.  It states, “This product is 
expected to have low aquatic toxicity (LD50 > 1000 mg/l) and is not considered to 
represent a long-term danger to the aquatic environment.” 

 
The Chevron Company product Clarity Hydraulic Oil AW 46 is a type of hydraulic oil.  
In general,  hydraulic oil contains various additives.  These additives often include 
phosphates [See United States Department of Health and Human Services, Agency 
for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry report providing information regarding 
the chemical identity of hydraulic fluid products located at:  
http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/toxprofiles/tp99-c3.pdf and provided in Attachment 4].  
Because the Chevron Company product Clarity Hydraulic Oil AW 46 is proprietary, 
it’s chemical composition is not made public.  Therefore, it is unknown whether it 
contains common hydraulic oil additives such as phosphates. 

 
Lake Tahoe is designated an Outstanding National Resource Water because of its 
extraordinary clarity, purity, and deep blue color [Basin Plan chapter 4, section 4.9, 
page 4.9-2; Basin Plan chapter 5, page 5-1].  However, the Lake’s clarity has been 
on a decreasing trend since standardized monitoring was initiated by the University 
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of California at Davis in the late 1960s [Lake Tahoe TMDL Program 2015 
Performance Report, page 2].  This decreasing trend, which has only recently begun 
to slow, is largely due to nitrogen, phosphorus, and fine sediment discharges 
associated with human activities [Basin Plan, Chapter 5, page 5-1].  As a result, 
Lake Tahoe is listed on the Federal Clean Water Act Section 303(d) list as impaired 
due to excessive fine sediment, nitrogen and phosphorus [pages ES-1 and 16-2 of 
the 2010 Lake Tahoe TMDL Report, 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/tmdl/lake_tahoe/do
cs/tmdl_rpt_nov2010.pdf].  Public and private partnerships are in place to invest 
approximately $1 billion into Lake Tahoe’s restoration through the Environmental 
Improvement Program (EIP), which follows millions of dollars that have already been 
spent to protect Lake Tahoe preceding EIP.  The Lahontan Water Board considers 
any discharge of nutrients and sediments into Lake Tahoe, regardless of the 
magnitude of the discharge, to seriously threaten the extensive efforts made toward 
restoring Lake Tahoe’s famed clarity  
 
Hydraulic oil discharges, such as the one subject to this Complaint, contain relatively 
minor quantities of nutrients (phosphorus) when compared to Lake Tahoe’s annual 
nutrient loading received from all sources.  However, the nutrients and organic 
substances from this discharge can still have a localized effect on Lake Tahoe’s 
water quality and clarity, can locally thwart some of the progress of the above-
referenced efforts, and can further increase the already significant challenge of 
reversing the decades-long decline in Lake Tahoe’s famed clarity. 
 
The discharge of four gallons of hydraulic oil on March 5, 2015, resulted in above 
moderate harm or potential harm to the beneficial uses of Lake Tahoe.  The 
Enforcement Policy defines above moderate as:  
 

“Above moderate – more than moderate threat to beneficial uses (i.e., 
impacts are observed or likely substantial, temporary restrictions on 
beneficial uses (e.g., less than 5 days), and human or ecological health 
concerns).” 

 
The discharge resulted in observed impacts to contact and non-contact recreational 
beneficial uses, as documented by the March 5, 2015 notification from the California 
Office of Emergency Services.  The hydraulic oil could potentially have created 
localized impacts on human health and minimal impacts to aquatic health, as noted 
in the MSDS for the hydraulic oil that was discharged.  Furthermore, any discharge 
of substances which can contain substances that can degrade Lake Tahoe’s famed 
clarity is a serious threat to the efforts made toward restoring Lake Tahoe.    
 

Based on the circumstances described above, a score of 4 (four) is assigned to Factor 1 
of the calculation methodology.   
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B.  Factor 2:  The Physical, Chemical, Biological or Thermal Characteristics of the 
Discharge 

 
This factor evaluates the degree of toxicity of the discharge by evaluating the 
physical, chemical, biological, and/or thermal nature of the discharge.  Toxicity is the 
degree to which a substance can damage a living or non-living organism. Toxicity 
can refer to the effect on a whole organism, such as an animal, bacterium, or plant, 
as well as the effect on a substructure of the organism, such as a cell or an organ.  A 
score between 0 (negligible risk) and 4 (significant risk) is assigned based on a 
determination of the risk or threat of the discharged material on potential receptors.  
Potential receptors are those identified considering human, environmental and 
ecosystem health exposure pathways. 
 
The MSDS provided by Aramark indicates that the hydraulic oil is not carcinogenic to 
humans and is not expected to present a long-term danger to aquatic life.  However, 
page 5 of the MSDS states, “This product is expected to have low aquatic toxicity…” 
indicating that the discharged hydraulic fluid does have some level of aquatic 
toxicity.  Additionally, the MSDS notes that hydraulic oil can be a skin and inhalation 
irritant, and it can also cause abdominal discomfort, nausea, and diarrhea if 
ingested. 
 
The characteristics of the discharged material therefore posed a moderate risk or 
threat to potential receptors.  The Enforcement Policy defines moderate as: 
 

“Discharged material poses a moderate risk or threat to potential receptors 
(i.e., the chemical and/or physical characteristics of the discharged 
material have some level of toxicity or pose a moderate level of concern 
regarding receptor protection).” 

 
The low aquatic toxicity and the potential for causing abdominal/intestinal impacts at 
a minimum, poses a moderate level of threat to human and ecological receptors.  
Accordingly, a score of 2 (two) is assigned to Factor 2. 

 
C.  Factor 3:  Susceptibility to Cleanup or Abatement 
 

Pursuant to the Enforcement Policy a score of 0 is assigned for this factor if 50 
percent or more of the discharge is susceptible to cleanup or abatement.  A score of 
one is assigned if less than 50 percent or more of the discharge is susceptible to 
cleanup or abatement. 
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Nine gallons of hydraulic oil were initially released, of which less than half (four 
gallons) were discharged into Lake Tahoe.  Aramark did not deploy oil absorbent 
materials to contain and collect the discharged hydraulic oil until approximately 18 
hours following the discharge event (discharge was estimated to occur at 
approximately 4:30 p.m. on March 5, 2015 [page 1, March 24, 2015 Aramark 
Supplemental Spill Report], and deployment of cleanup materials were completed at 
approximately 10:30 a.m. on March 6, 2015 [page 2, March 16, 2015 Aramark Spill 
Report]).  It is assumed that a portion of the hydraulic oil directly discharged into 
Lake Tahoe was cleaned up, but an estimated quantity is not provided.  Regardless, 
more than 50 percent of the total nine gallons that was initially released was cleaned 
up, and the remaining amount is susceptible to abatement.  Therefore, a score of 0 
is assigned to this factor. 
 

Step 2:  Assessments for Discharge Violations 
 
Water Code section 13385, subdivision (c), allows civil liability to be assessed on a daily 
basis and on a per gallon basis for any amount discharged but not cleaned up in excess 
of 1,000 gallons.  Civil liability may be assessed in an amount up to $10,000 per day of 
violation, and up to $10 per gallon discharged but not cleaned up in excess of 1,000 
gallons. 
 
The Enforcement Policy provides that the initial liability amount shall be determined on a 
per day and a per gallon basis using the Potential for Harm score from Step 1 in 
conjunction with the Extent of Deviation from the Requirement of the violation.  (See 
Enforcement Policy, Tables 1 and 2.) 
 
A.  Extent of Deviation from the Requirement 
 

Section 301 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1311) (Clean 
Water Act) and Water Code section 13376 prohibit the discharge of pollutants to 
waters of the United States except in compliance with a National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) permit. 
 
The Water Quality Control Plan for the Lahontan Region (Basin Plan), adopted 
pursuant to Water Code section 13243, contains the following prohibitions:  
 

 “The discharge of treated or untreated domestic sewage, garbage or 
other solid wastes, or any other deleterious material to the surface waters 
of the Lake Tahoe Basin is prohibited.”  [Basin Plan, Chapter 5.2] 
 
“The discharge, attributable to human activities, of solid or liquid waste 
materials, including soil, silt, clay, sand, and other organic and earthen 
materials, to the surface waters of the Lake Tahoe Basin, is prohibited.”  
[Basin Plan, Chapter 5.2] 
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“The discharge of wastes from boats, marinas, or other shoreline 
appurtenances to surface waters of the Lake Tahoe HU is prohibited.”  
[Basin Plan, Chapter 5.2] 
 
“The discharge of any waste or deleterious material to surface waters of 
the Lake Tahoe HU is prohibited.”  [Basin Plan, Chapter 5.2] 
 
“The discharge of waste which causes violation of any narrative water 
quality objective contained in this Plan, including the Nondegradation 
Objective, is prohibited.”  [Basin Plan, Chapters 3 and 5.2] 
 

The Basin Plan also contains the following narrative water quality objective: 
 
“Waters shall not contain oils, greases, waxes or other materials in 
concentrations that result in a visible film or coating on the surface of the 
water or on objects in the water, that cause nuisance, or that otherwise 
adversely affect the water for beneficial uses.”  [Basin Plan, Chapter 5.1] 
 

Aramark discharged four gallons of hydraulic oil from the Tahoe Queen vessel 
directly into Lake Tahoe, which is a water of the United States as defined by the 
Clean Water Act and Code of Federal Regulations, on March 5, 2015 [Page 1, 
March 16, 2015 Aramark Spill Report].  The discharge created an oily sheen along 
the shore zone area near Ski Run Marina [Page 2, March 16, 2015 Aramark Spill 
Report.  Page 2 and attached photos, electronic mail from Lauri Kemper to Scott 
Ferguson et. al. (Attachment 6)]. Such discharges are expressly prohibited under the 
Clean Water Act, the California Water Code, and the Basin Plan.  Thus, the 
discharge is a major deviation from prescribed requirements.  The calculation 
methodology defines a major deviation as, 
 

“The requirement has been rendered ineffective (e.g., discharger 
disregards the requirement, and/or the requirement is rendered ineffective 
in its essential functions).” 
 

The hydraulic oil discharge rendered the prohibitions on discharges (e.g., oils, 
deleterious material, organic materials, discharges from boats, and wastes) to 
waters of the United States ineffective in their essential functions.  The Lahontan 
Water Board was notified of the discharge by a complainant whose dog was coated 
in an oily substance after being in Lake Tahoe.  The complainant observed an oily 
and greasy-to-the touch sheen on the water where the dog had been.  Thus, the 
discharge resulted in observed adverse impacts to contact recreation beneficial 
uses. The prohibitions would be effective only if no hydraulic oil discharge had 
occurred. 
 
Accordingly, based on the Potential for Harm score of 6 and major deviation from the 
requirements, the per-gallon and per-day factors for the discharge are both 0.22. 
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B.  Initial Amount of ACL 
 

The initial base liability amount for the discharge is calculated by multiplying and 
adding: 
 

(per gallon factor) x (gallons discharged but not cleaned up over 1000 gallons) x 
(maximum per gallon liability) + (per day factor) x (days of violation) x (maximum per 

day liability)  
= Initial Base Liability 

 
(0.22) x (0 gallons) x ($10/gallon) + (0.22) x (1 day) x ($10,000/day) = $2,200 

 
Step 3:  Per Day Assessments for Non-Discharge Violations 
 
Non-discharge violations are not alleged in the Complaint. 

 
Step 4:  Adjustment Factors  
 
The Enforcement Policy describes three factors related to the violator’s conduct that 
should be considered for modification of the amount of initial liability:  the violator’s 
culpability, the violator’s efforts to cleanup or cooperate with regulatory authorities after 
the violation, and the violator’s compliance history.  After each of these factors is 
considered for the violations involved, the applicable factor should be multiplied by the 
proposed amount for each violation to determine the revised amount for that violation. 
 
A. Adjustment for Culpability 

 
For culpability, the Enforcement Policy suggests an adjustment resulting in a 
multiplier between 0.5 to 1.5, with the lower multiplier for accidental incidents, and 
the higher multiplier for intentional or negligent behavior.  In this case, a culpability 
multiplier of 1.5 has been selected for the reasons described below: 
 
Aramark’s March 16, 2015 spill report identifies the cause of the hydraulic discharge 
to be from maintenance activities occurring at the time on the Tahoe Queen vessel.  
Page 1 of the report states, “Specifically, when making repairs to the paddle wheel, 
the hydraulic lines were disconnected and were not adequately capped [emphasis 
added]…an employee may have inadvertently started the engine, causing hydraulic 
oil to discharge from the hydraulic line.”  Aramark’s March 24, 2015 Supplemental 
Spill Report adds additional information stating that the engine was, indeed, started.  
Page 2 of that supplemental report states,  
 

“…the crew of the Paradise was instructed to conduct a routine weekly 
inspection of the Tahoe Queen, which typically includes starting the 
engine to prevent carbon buildup.  We believe it may have been starting 
of the engine that resulted in the release of the mineral oil from the 
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hydraulic lines.  The crew of the Paradise did not know that the hydraulic 
lines were still undergoing repair.” 

 
Page 2 of Aramark’s March 24, 2015 Supplemental Spill Report states that, “The 
lines were capped by Aramark’s contractor, Advanced Marine, using plastic and duct 
tape wrapped tightly around the plastic to create a seal.”  Aramark’s response to 
Lahontan Water Board staff’s question regarding how Aramark’s procedure for 
capping the lines differed from the industry standard is that its contractor, “…did not 
anticipate needing to create a pressurized seal to prevent oil from coming of out the 
lines [sic]…The lines from which we believe there was a release are now capped 
with steel plates,” [Page 2, March 24, 2015 Supplemental Spill Report]., Page 2 of 
that report notes that the contractor did not use steel plates to cap the lines because 
he believed the engine was static and would not be started, and that plastic was 
used to cap the lines only to prevent dust and water from entering the lines. 
 
Page 2 of Aramark’s supplemental spill report states that the crew from another 
Aramark-owned vessel was instructed to conduct a routine weekly inspection of the 
Tahoe Queen at the time of the discharge.  Routine weekly inspections include 
starting the engine.  The employees did not know that the hydraulic lines of the 
Tahoe Queen vessel were being repaired at the time of the weekly inspection.   
 
Furthermore, page 2 of Aramark’s March 24, 2015 Supplemental Spill Report notes 
that its, “…employees who perform servicing or maintenance on equipment are 
required by company policy to have lock out/tag out training.  Lockout/tag out 
ensures that locked out machines or equipment are properly shut off and not started 
up when maintenance or servicing work is being performed...  We do not believe that 
this training has been provided to Aramark employees working on the Tahoe 
Queen…”  Page 2 of Aramark’s August 28, 2015 Techincal Report verifies that all 
employees later received lock-out/tag-out training on July 9, 2015. 
 
Finally, no evidence has been submitted to indicate that Aramark’s contractors and 
employees deployed containment booms or other means of secondary containment 
around the Tahoe Queen Vessel or work area before starting a maintenance project 
that involves working on systems that could result in a release of contaminants such 
as hydraulic oil.  Such preventative measures are imperative when performing 
maintenance activities on sensitive water bodies like Lake Tahoe.   
   
Aramark is ultimately responsible for the proper operations and maintenance of its 
fleet, which includes the Tahoe Queen.  Aramark is also responsible for the actions 
of its contractors and employees, and is also responsible to ensure its employees 
are appropriately trained to successfully perform their assigned duties in a manner 
that is safe both to human health and to the environmental.   Aramark’s failure to 
ensure its contractors implement an industry standard of care and to ensure its own 
employees received training in accordance with Aramark’s own policy directly 
contributed to the discharge of hydraulic oil into Lake Tahoe.  Therefore, a culpability 
multiplier of 1.5 is appropriate here. 

 



ARAMARK     -11- ACL COMPLAINT ATTACHMENT B 
El Dorado County         ADMINISTRATIVE CIVIL      
 LIABILITY METHODOLOGY 
 

 
 

B. Adjustment for Cleanup and Cooperation 
 
For cleanup and cooperation, the Enforcement Policy suggests an adjustment 
should result in a multiplier between 0.75 and 1.5.  A lower multiplier is for situations 
where there is a high degree of cleanup and/or cooperation and a higher multiplier is 
for situations where cleanup and/or cooperation is minimal or absent.  In this case, a 
Cleanup and Cooperation multiplier of 1.25 has been selected. 
 
Lower values are typically reserved for dischargers who immediately identify a 
discharge and implement appropriate cleanup measures.  Aramark staff did not 
observe the discharge when it occurred and therefore did not immediately implement 
cleanup measures.  The discharge occurred at approximately 4:30 p.m. on March 5, 
2015, and Aramark was not aware of a potential discharge until the following 
morning after being notified of a spill report by the Ski Run Marina management.  
Aramark’s marina manager did not locate the source of the discharge until 9:45 a.m. 
on March 6, 2015, and cleanup measures were deployed by 10:30 a.m. – 16 hours 
after the discharge had occurred [page 1, March 24, 2015 Aramark Supplemental 
Spill Report and page 2, March 16, 2015 Aramark Spill Report]. 
 
A higher factor is not considered here because once Aramark discovered the 
discharge it promptly reported the spill to appropriate agencies and implemented its 
own spill prevention/cleanup plan as identified in the Lake Tahoe Geographic 
Response Plan (September, 2007, prepared by the Lake Tahoe Response Plan 
Area Committee, of which Aramark is a member).  Aramark continued to work with 
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and left containment booms in place 
until confirmatory post-cleanup samples were collected and analyzed to confirm non-
detectable concentrations of petroleum product [see pages 1-2 of Aramark’s March 
16, 2015 Spill Report].  
 

 
C. Adjustment for History of Violations 

 
The Enforcement Policy suggests that where there is a history of repeat violations, a 
minimum multiplier of 1.1 should be used for this factor.  In this case, a neutral 
multiplier of 1.0 has been selected based upon absence of prior violations. 
 

Step 5:  Determination of Total Base Liability Amount  
 
Total Base Liability Amount of $4,125 is determined by multiplying the initial liability 
amount for the violation from Step 2 by the adjustment factors from Step 4: 
 

(Initial Base Liability) x (Culpability) x (Cleanup) x (History) = Total Base Liability 
($2,200) x (1.5) x (1.25) x (1.0) = $4,125 

 
Step 6:  Ability to Pay and Ability to Continue Business 
 
The Enforcement Policy provides that if the Lahontan Water Board has sufficient 
financial information to assess the violator’s ability to pay the Total Base Liability, or to 
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assess the effect of the Total Base Liability on the violator’s ability to continue in 
business, then the Total Base Liability amount may be adjusted downward.  Similarly, if 
a violator’s ability to pay is greater than similarly situated dischargers, it may justify an 
increase in the amount to provide a sufficient deterrent effect. 
 
The Lahontan Water Board Prosecution Team has enough information to suggest that 
Aramark has the ability to pay the proposed liability, so that the burden of rebutting this 
presumption shifts to Aramark.  Aramark’s net income for 2014 was $149 million, and its 
net income for 2015 was $235.9 million (see http://www.msn.com/en-
us/money/stockdetails/financials/fi-126.1.ARMK.NYS).  This indicates Aramark has the 
ability to pay the liability. 
  
Step 7:  Other Factors as Justice May Require 
 
The Enforcement Policy provides that if the Lahontan Water Board believes that the 
amount determined using the above factors is inappropriate, the liability amount may be 
adjusted under the provision for “other factors as justice may require,” if express, 
evidence-supported findings are made. Additionally, the staff costs for investigating the 
violation should be added to the liability amount.   
 
A. Adjustments for Other Factors as Justice May Require 

 
The Lahontan Water Board Prosecution Team has determined that the proposed 
base liability amount is appropriate. The proposed base liability appropriately 
considers the potential for harm that was experienced to recreational beneficial uses 
and appropriately addresses impacts to the extensive efforts made toward restoring 
Lake Tahoe’s famed clarity.  Therefore, no adjustment is being made for other 
factors as justice may require. 
 

B. Adjustment for Staff Costs 
 
The Water Board has suspended the practice of adding staff cost into administrative 
civil liabilities based upon the California State Auditor’s findings stated in its 2012-
120 Audit Report.  Specifically, one of the findings in the Audit Report is that staffing 
costs in penalty actions for water quality certification violations are, “generally not 
supported and are inaccurate because of inflated cost rates.” (California State 
Auditor Report 2012-120 State Water Resources Control Board, It Should Ensure a 
More Consistent Administration of Water Quality Certification Program, June 2013).  
This enforcement action does not involve violations of a 401 Water Quality 
Certification, as was the focus in Audit Report 2012-120. However, staff believes the 
justification in the Audit Report still applies to this enforcement action where the staff 
cost rate has yet to be revised to reflect actual staff salaries and overhead cost for 
each program. In an abundance of caution, the Water Board, in consultation with the 
State Water Resources Control Board, has suspended adding staff cost into 
administrative civil liabilities until the issues identified by the State Auditor can be 
addressed. 
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Step 8:  Economic Benefit 
 
The Enforcement Policy directs the Lahontan Water Board to determine any economic 
benefit of the violations based upon the best available information.  The Enforcement 
Policy suggests that the Lahontan Water Board compare the economic benefit amount 
to the adjusted Total Base Liability and ensure that the adjusted Total Base Liability is, 
at a minimum, 10 percent greater than the economic benefit amount.  Doing so should 
create a deterrent effect and will prevent administrative civil liabilities from simply 
becoming the cost of doing business.   
 
Aramark’s August 28, 2015 Technical Report identifies the following cost savings:  
 
A. “The cost estimate including labor, to properly seal the hydraulic lines in accordance 

with industry standards totaled $450,” [page 1 of Technical Report].  Lahontan Water 
Board staff considers the labor as a recurring expense that would be necessary in 
some capacity for each maintenance period.  The associated economic benefit of 
non-compliance from March 5, 2015 to the proposed liability payment date of May 
11, 2016 at a discount rate of 7.30 percent is $293. 
 

B. “The cost for developing the SOP [standard operating procedure] included $1,500 
and $1,800 incurred by Aramark and EEC [consultant retained by Aramark], 
respectively, for a total cost of $3,300 for SOP development,” [page 1 of Technical 
Report].  Lahontan Water Board staff considers this a delayed economic benefit.  
The non-compliance date for the SOP development is assumed to be the 
implementation date of the Enforcement Policy (May 20, 2010).  While Aramark 
should have had a standard operating procedures developed at the time it assumed 
ownership of the Tahoe Queen [Aramark assumed ownership of the Tahoe Queen in 
2002, see https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Hornblower_Cruises], historical operation 
without standard procedures prior to promulgation of the Enforcement Policy has 
been excluded.  Aramark developed and implemented standard operating 
procedures on July 9, 2015 (Page 2 of Aramark’s August 28, 2015 Technical 
Report).  The benefit of non-compliance from May 20, 2010 to July 9, 2015, with a 
proposed liability payment date of May 11, 2016, at a discount rate of 7.60 percent, 
is $879.  
 

C. “Cost for implementing the SOP totaled $440.00 and consisted of training for the 
incorporation of spill prevention, containment, control and communication/reporting 
with maintenance activities,” [page 1 of Technical Report].  Lahontan Water Board 
staff maintains that this training should have been conducted annually once Aramark 
assumed ownership of the Tahoe Queen in 2002.  However, the Lahontan Water 
Board is excluding historical operation prior to promulgation of the Enforcement 
Policy on May 20, 2010.  Aramark implemented this training for the first time on July 
9, 2015 (Page 2 of Aramark’s August 28, 2015 Technical Report).The benefit of non-
compliance from May 20, 2010 to July 9, 2015, with a proposed liability payment 
date of May 11, 2016, at a discount rate of 7.60 percent, is $1,741.  
 

D. “The cost incurred by Aramark for conducting the lock-out/tag-out training totaled 
$339.66 and included seventeen (17) sessions with an average of one hour per 
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session at an employee hourly rate of $19.98,” [page 2 of Technical Report].  
Lahontan Water Board staff maintains that this training should have been conducted 
annually once Aramark assumed ownership of the Tahoe Queen in 2002.  However, 
the Lahontan Water Board is excluding historical operation prior to promulgation of 
the Enforcement Policy on May 20, 2010.  Aramark implemented this training for the 
first time on July 9, 2015 (Page 2 of Aramark’s August 28, 2015 Technical 
Report).The benefit of non-compliance from May 20, 2010 to July 9, 2015, with a 
proposed liability payment date of May 11, 2016, at a discount rate of 7.60 percent, 
is $1,344. 

 
The total savings, less interest, is $4,257.  To ensure the adjusted Total Base Liability 
is, at a minimum, 10 percent greater than the economic benefit amount, the Total Base 
Liability must be greater than $4,683 (not accounting for accrued interest). 
   
Step 9:  Maximum and Minimum Liability Amounts 
 
The maximum liability amount the Lahontan Water Board may assess administratively 
pursuant to Water Code section 13385, subdivision (c), for Aramark’s March 5, 2015 
discharge of hydraulic oil is $10,000 for the one day of violation.   
 
Water Code section 13385, subdivision (c) does not establish a minimum liability.  
However, the Enforcement Policy requires that: 

  
The adjusted Total Base Liability shall be at least 10 percent higher than the 
Economic Benefit Amount so that liabilities are not construed as the cost of doing 
business and that the assessed liability provides a meaningful deterrent to future 
violations. 

 
Therefore, the minimum liability amount the Lahontan Water Board must assess is 
$4,683.     
 
Step 10:  Final Liability Amount 
 
The Total Proposed Liability Amount is $4,683 based upon the considerations 
discussed in detail, above. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Aramark Spill Report Dated March 16, 2015 
2. Aramark Supplemental Spill Report Dated March 24, 2015 
3. Aramark Technical Report Dated August 28, 2015 
4. United States Department of Health and Human Services, Agency for Toxic 

Substances and Disease Registry report, Chemical and Physical Information for 
Hydraulic Fluid  

5. Lahontan Water Board Documents related to Spill Reporting and Investigation 
6.  March 6, 2015 electronic mail from Lauri Kemper to Scott Ferguson, et al 
7. Economic Benefit Analysis Spreadsheet  
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3. CHEMICAL AND PHYSICAL INFORMATION

3.1 Chemical Identity

Information regarding the chemical identity of hydraulic fluid products is located in Table 3-l. This table

contains information representative of three types of hydraulic fluids: mineral oil, organophosphate ester, and

polyalphaolefin.

Early fluid power systems used water as the hydraulic medium. Because of its corrosive effect on the metallic

parts and lack of lubricity, water was replaced by petroleum-based oil. The petroleum-based fluids discussed in

this profile are mineral oil and water-in-oil emulsion fluids. Water-in-oil emulsions consist of 35-40% water,

<60% mineral oil, and emulsifiers and additives. The water is dispersed in fine droplets in the oil phase.

However, these fluids containing oil are readily ignited (NFPA 1991). Some water-in-oil emulsion

hydraulic fluids contain ethylene glycol; however, ethylene glycol represents <10% of the total volume of

water-in-oil emulsion hydraulic fluids. The carbon number range in mineral oil hydraulic fluids will vary

depending on the application, but probably is in the range of C15 to C50(IARC 1984). The hydrocarbon

components of mineral oil (and ethylene glycol) are used in numerous other applications, so the presence of

these components in the environment cannot be uniquely associated with mineral oil-based hydraulic fluid use.

Most mineral oil hydraulic fluids are made from dewaxed paraffin-based crude oils that are blended with

additives to impart appropriate properties for the specific use (Newton 1989; Papay 1989, 1991; Wills

1980). The types of additives, which are summarized below, are quite numerous and in some cases (Mattie et al.

1993) may contain organophosphate esters. These additives include extreme pressure additives, which help

prevent surface damage under severe loading (organic sulfur-, phosphorus-, and chlorine-containing

compounds); anti-wear additives, which prevent wearing under light loads (fatty acids and derivatives,

organophosphate esters); corrosion inhibitors, which prevent corrosion by oxygen and water (fatty acids,

sulfonates, and salts of fatty acids); oxidation inhibitors, which inhibit oxidation of the hydraulic fluid (phenols,

amines, and sulfides); defoamers, which prevent foam formation (silicone oils); viscosity index improvers,

which reduce the dependence of viscosity on temperature (polyalphaolefins, polymethacrylates, and

polyalkylstyrenes); pour point depressants, which lower the pour point temperature (polymethacrylates and

condensation products); demulsifiers, which allow separation of oil and water (ionogenic and nonionogenic

polar compounds); and dispersants, which prevent unwanted deposits (sulfonates and amides) (Moller 1989).
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The exact nature of each of these additives appears to be trade secret information since none of the Material

Safety Data Sheets describing the hydraulic fluids presented in this profile identify these materials. In addition,

no information concerning the exact production methods used in manufacturing these hydraulic

fluids was located in the available literature. Nonetheless, they are probably manufactured in batch processes

and then tested to insure that they conform to the specifications for which they are sold. The number, nature, and

amount of each additive used in a batch may depend on availability, cost, or performance.

The carbon number range (hence, viscosity) in mineral oil hydraulic fluids will vary depending on the

application of the fluid (IARC 1984; Papay 1989, 1991, 1993; Wills 1980), but probably are in the range of

C15 to C50. The higher the carbon number, the higher the viscosity; viscosity is a major factor in determining

the base stock of a hydraulic fluid (Moller 1989; Papay 1989, 1991, 1993; Shubkin 1993; Wills 1980). A

more highly refined mineral oil will have better viscosity properties (i.e., high viscosity index or low

dependence of viscosity on temperature) (Moller 1989; Shubkin 1993).

In the past, hydraulic fluids using mineral oils sometimes included such additives as PCBs to improve the

thermal resistance or other properties of the resulting fluids. While such uses of PCBs have been

discontinued, PCBs at NPL sites may be encountered as a component where hydraulic fluids are a site

contaminant (ATSDR 1993b).

Synthetic fire-resistant fluids have been developed to replace petroleum-based fluids for many applications.

Although there are several types of these less hazardous fluids, the only synthetic fluids discussed in this

profile are phosphate esters and polyalphaolefins. The phosphate esters are tertiary esters of orthophosphoric

acid, O=P(OH)3, and may be triaryl, trialkyl, and alkyl/aryl. The polyalphaolefins are usually based on 2-decene

and contain a mixture of oligomers (dimers, trimers, etc.).

The first commercial trialkyl phosphate esters (TAP) were tricresyl phosphate (TCP) and trixylenyl

phosphate (TXP), referred to as �natural� phosphate esters because the cresols and xylenols used as raw

materials are derived from petroleum oil or coal tar (Marino and Placek 1994). These products are not

commercially significant at present; however, at waste disposal sites, contaminants from older product

formulations may be encountered, particularly those containing the neurotoxic tri-ortho-cresyl phosphate

isomer. �Synthetic� phosphate esters are derived from synthetic feedstocks. Specific synthetic reactions have

been developed to produce triaryl, trialkyl, and alkyl\aryl esters. The triaryl phosphates are currently the most

significant commercial products (Marino 1992). All three organic groups can be the same, such as tricresyl
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or trixylenyl phosphate, or they may be different, as iso-propylphenyl diphenyl phosphate or cresyl diphenyl

phosphate. Of the trialkyl phosphate esters, tributyl phosphate is the most important of the synthetic base

stocks. Most are used in aircraft hydraulic fluids (Marino 1992). Dibutyl phenyl phosphate, also used as an

aircraft hydraulic fluid, is the most important of the alkyl/aryl phosphate esters (Marino 1992).

Products may be either mixtures of phosphate ester compounds resulting directly from the manufacturing

process or mixtures resulting from post-blending or compounding with additives.

One of the main human health concerns about organophosphate esters is the potential for neurotoxicity

reactions, in particular a condition known as organophosphate-induced delayed neurotoxicity (OPIDN). Tri-

ortho- cresyl phosphate (TOCP) has been identified as one of the more potent OPIDN neurotoxins in humans,

and was formerly a constituent in some organophosphate ester hydraulic fluid products (Marino 1992; Marino

and Placek 1994). Production processes now routinely remove virtually all the TOCP. For instance, tricresyl

phosphate (TCP) products now typically are manufactured to contain over 98% meta and para isomers and

virtually no TOCP (Marino and Placek 1994). Products containing these compounds associated with OPIDN

have now entirely disappeared from commercial use, and the vast majority of the industrial organophosphate

esters are based on triaryl phosphates with no halogenated components (Marino 1992). At waste disposal sites,

however, site contaminants from older product formulations containing the ortho form may be encountered.

In addition, organophosphate esters also are used as antiwear additives in hydraulic fluids and other

lubricants; of the organophosphate esters discussed in this profile, Durad 110, 125, 220B, and 300 are

categorized by their manufacturers as antiwear additives and not as hydraulic fluids (FMC 1991c, 1991d,

1992a, 1992b; Marino and Placek 1994).

Before the 1960s products were introduced based on alkyl aryl phosphates that could contain chlorinated

aromatic hydrocarbons. Such products have now entirely disappeared from commercial use, and the vast

majority of the industrial organophosphate esters are based on triaryl phosphates with no halogenated

components (Marino 1992). However, at older waste disposal sites, hydraulic fluid site contaminants could

contain chlorinated hydrocarbons. As with the PCBs formerly included as additives in other forms of

hydraulic fluids, these additives may present more toxicity risks than the primary ingredients of the hydraulic

fluids.
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A typical polyalphaolefin oil prepared from 1-decene and BF 3· n-C4H9OH catalyst at 30 C contains

predominantly trimer (C30hydrocarbons) with much smaller amounts of dimer, tetramer, pentamer, and

hexamer. While 1 -decene is the most common starting material, other alphaolefins can be used, depending on

the needs of the product oil.

The final oil contains a large number of isomers (e.g., the trimer of 1 -decene contains many C30 isomers, the

tetramer contains many C40 isomers) which result from skeletal branching during the oligomerization

(Shubkin 1993). Polyalphaolefin oils are many times classified by their kinematic viscosity at 100 °C; the

higher the viscosity, the longer the average chain length of the polyalphaolefin. The isomer distribution of a

polyalphaolefin oil used in a particular hydraulic fluid will depend on the application. A polyalphaolefin oil

contains a narrower range of molecular weights than a comparable mineral oil (Chrisope and Landry

1993;Shubkin 1993).

Most hydraulic fluids contain additives that impart needed properties (Papay 1989, 1991; Wills 1980). The

exact composition and proportion of these additives in a certain type of fluid depends on the intended use.

Hydraulic fluids are compounded to conform to performance-based standards such as Military or ASTM

(American Society for Testing and Materials) specifications. Some examples of Military specifications are

shown in Table 3-2. Many different formulations can be compounded to conform to one performance

standard. It should be noted that the variability among these products or even within products with the same

trade names may confuse efforts to determine environmental and health effects of hydraulic fluids at

hazardous waste landfills since hydraulic fluids that are currently used may or may not contain the same

components present in old products of the same name.

Table 3-3 contains information regarding the chemical identity of principal components of hydraulic fluids.

Trade names are included when the component constitutes 100% (or nearly 100%) of the product.

Information has also been included for several representative types of mineral oil. It should be noted,

however, that the term �mineral oil� encompasses a wide variety of petroleum-based products. Several

phosphate esters used as hydraulic fluid additives are also included in Table 3-3.

Some of the products listed in the tables in Chapter 3 are not currently on the market. Information has been

included for these products since components may be present at older waste disposal sites. For example,

Cellulube 200 has not been a commercial product for over 20 years, Pydraul products are no longer sold

commercially, and MIL-H- 19457B has been obsolete since 1981 (FMC 1995). In addition, some product
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names and designations have changed. For example, Durad MP 280B is now known as a Reolube (effective

January 1995) (FMC 1995).

3.2 Physical and Chemical Properties

Information regarding the physical and chemical properties of selected hydraulic fluid products is shown in

Table 3-4. Physical and chemical properties of selected hydraulic fluid components are shown in Table 3-5.

The physical properties important for the projected use of hydraulic fluids are viscosity, density, foaming

behavior, and fire resistance. There is no generally recognized test method for measuring flammability of

hydraulic fluids, although various test methods may be utilized (Moller 1989).

Physical data important for describing environmental behavior (KOC, KOW, vapor pressure, water solubility, and

Henry�s law constant) are incomplete. In general, hydraulic fluids have relatively low water solubilities.

A summary of the hydraulic fluids discussed in this profile is found in Table 3-6. Data on some of the

components of hydraulic fluids are shown in Tables 3-7 through 3-9.
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Amount Basis Date Delayed? Amount Basis Date Delayed? Amount Basis Date
Proper Hydraulic Line Seal ECI 1/1/2015 Y 450.00$       ECI 8/28/2015 N ECI 1/1/2015 3/5/2015 5/11/2016 5/11/2016 7.30% 293$              

SOP Development ECI 1/1/2015 Y 3,300.00$    ECI 8/28/2015 Y ECI 1/1/2015 5/20/2010 7/9/2015 5/11/2016 7.60% 879$              

SOP Training ECI 1/1/2015 Y ECI 1/1/2015 N 440$       ECI 8/28/2015 5/20/2010 7/9/2015 5/11/2016 7.60% 1,741$           

LOTO Training ECI 1/1/2015 Y ECI 1/1/2015 N 340$       ECI 8/28/2015 5/20/2010 7/9/2015 5/11/2016 7.60% 1,344$           

Income Tax Schedule: For‐Profit (Other than C‐Corporation) Analyst: Bryan Elder Total Benefit: 4,257$           
USEPA BEN Model Version: Version 5.5.0 (July 2015) Date/Time of Analysis: 3/1/2016 8:32
Assunptions:

1
2
3
4
5

6
7
8 The economic benefit analysis assumes the Discharger operates as a for‐profit entity. 

Costs for proper hydraulic line seal were provided by Discharger and assumed to include mostly labor expenses.
SOP development costs provided by Discharger. 
SOP and LOTO training are assumed to be annually conducted based on SOP training schedule. Costs provided by Discharger. 
Non‐compliance date for hydraulic line seal assumed to be date of ilicit discharge.

Non‐compliance date for SOP development and training assumed to be implementation date of SWRCB Enforcement Policy. Historical operation without proper training and standard procedures has been excluded.
Compliance date assumed to be the penalty payment date for avoided costs. Compliance date for SOP and training assumed to be July 9, 2015.
Penalty payment date assumed to be the proposed Regional Board hearing date of May 11, 2016. 

Benefit of 
Non‐

Compliance

Economic Benefit Analysis
Aramark Sports and Entertainment Services, LCC

Compliance Action
Capital Investment One‐Time Non‐Depreciable Expenditure Annual Cost Non‐Compliance 

Date
Compliance 

Date
Penalty 

Payment Date
Discount 
Rate
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Penalty Calculation Methodology Worksheet - Version Date: 2/4/2014

Select Item 4 = Above Moderate
Select Item 2 = Discharged material poses moderate risk
Select Item > 50% of Discharge Susceptible to Cleanup or A
Select Item Major

Discharger Name/ID: Aramark:  Tahoe Queen

Step 1 Potential Harm Factor (Generated from Button) 6

Step 2 Per Gallon Factor (Generated from Button) 0.22

Gallons 0

Statutory Maximum 10000.00

High Volume 

Total -$                                                                    

Per Day Factor (Generated from Button) 0.22

Days 1

Statutory Max per Day 10,000$                     

Total 2,200$                                                                 

Step 3 Per Day Factor

Total Days

Multiple Day Violation Reduction

Statutory Max per Day

Total -$                                                                    

2,200.00$                                                            

Step 4 Culpability 1.5 3,300.00$                                                            

Cleanup and Cooperation 1.25 4,125.00$                                                            

History of Violations 1 4,125.00$                                                            

Maximum for this Violation 10,000.00$                

Amount for this Violation 4,125.00$                                                            

Step 5 Total Base Liability Amount 4,125.00$                                                            

Step 6 Ability to Pay & to Continue in Business 1 4,125.00$                                                            

Step 7 Other Factors as Justice May Require 1 4,125.00$                                                            

Staff Costs -$                          4,125.00$                                                            

Step 8 Economic Benefit 4,257$                       

Step 9 Minimum Liability Amount 4,683.00$                  

Maximum Liability Amount 10,000.00$                

Step 10 Final Liability Amount 4,683.00$                                                            

Penalty Day Range Generator

Start Date of Violation=
End Date of Violation=

Maximum Days Fined (Steps 2 & 3) = 0 Days
Minimum Days Fined (Steps 2 & 3) = Days

A
d

d
'l 

F
ac

to
rs

Violation 1

D
is

ch
ar

g
e 

V
io

la
ti

o
n

s

Initial Amount of the ACL

N
o

n
-D

is
ch

ar
g

e 
V

io
la

ti
o

n
s

Instructions
1. Select Potential Harm for Discharge Violations
2. Select Characteristics of the Discharge
3. Select Susceptibility to Cleanup or Abatement
4. Select Deviation from Standard
5. Click "Determine Harm & per Gallon/Day…"
6. Enter Values into the Yellow highlighted fields
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